You can view the agenda on the website
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code
To:

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD

The Chair and Members
of the Devon Audit
Partnership Committee

Date: 30 June 2021

Contact: Dan Looker, 01392 382232
Email: dan.looker@devon.gov.uk

DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE
Thursday, 8th July, 2021
A meeting of the Devon Audit Partnership Committee is to be held on the above date
at 10.30 am to consider the following matters. This will be a virtual meeting, for the
joining instructions please contact the Clerk for further details on attendance.
Phil Norrey
Chief Executive
AGENDA

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE
1

Apologies

2

Election of Chair
The Chair should be held on a rotational basis with each Council having a
Member serve alternately for one year. Devon County Council have recently held
the Chair and it is therefore Torbay Council’s turn to hold the post of Chair for one
year from the date of this meeting.

3

Election of Vice-Chair
The Vice-Chair shall be elected from a Council other than that which currently
holds the Chair.

4

Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)
Minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2021, attached.

5

Items Requiring Urgent Attention
Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as
matters of urgency.

6

Devon Audit Partnership - Revenue Outturn Position 2020/21 (Pages 5 - 12)
Report of the Head of Devon Audit Partnership (CT/21/61), attached.

7

Devon Audit Partnership - Annual Report 2020/21 (Pages 13 - 22)
Report of the Head of Devon Audit Partnership (CT/21/62), attached.

8

Devon Audit Partnership - Further Update Report June 2021 (Pages 23 - 26)
Report of the Head of Devon Audit Partnership (CT/21/63), attached.

9

Future Meetings
Members are asked to have please their diaries ready to arrange 2021/22
meeting dates.
PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND
PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE
DISCLOSED
Nil

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should
therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor
parking at County Hall and bus routes.
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information
see the Travel Devon webpages.
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504
beforehand.
Membership of a Committee
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.
Committee Terms of Reference
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee,
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.
Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website
Public Participation
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting.
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice.
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so,
as directed by the Chair. Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed.
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic
Services Officer in attendance.
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking
place on that item.
WiFI
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall.
Fire
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest
available exit following the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park
behind Bellair.
First Aid
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.
Mobile Phones
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council
Chamber
Alternative Formats
If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in another format (e.g. large
print, audio tape, Braille or other languages), please contact the Customer Service
Centre on 0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to the
Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall, Exeter, EX2 4QD.
Induction Loop available

Agenda Item 4
DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE
11 March 2021
Present:Devon County Council:Councillors J Clatworthy and G Gribble (Chair)
Other Council Representatives
Councillor Robert Loxton, Torbay Council
Councillor Karen Kennedy, Torbay Council
Councillor Margaret Corvid, Plymouth City Council
Councillor Lorraine Parker-Delaz-Ajete, Plymouth City Council
Councillor Philip Hackett, Torridge District Council
Councillor Stuart Penny, Mid Devon District Council
Councillor Alex White, Mid Devon District Council
Councillor Mike Davies, West Devon District Council
Councillor Mandy Ewings, West Devon District Council
Councillor Lance Austen, South Hams District Council
Councillor Tom Holway, South Hams District Council
Councillor Jeremy Phillips, North Devon Council

Apologies:Councillor Claire Hodson, Torridge District Council

*

85

Minutes
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2020 be signed as a
correct record.

*

86

Items Requiring Urgent Attention
There was no item raised as a matter of urgency.

*

87

Nine Month Update Report 2020/21
The Committee received the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/30) summarising the
Partnership’s activity in the first nine months of 2020/21.
Members noted:
 impact of Covid 19 on work and the re-assessment of Internal Audit plans to ensure they
are realistic and can be effectively delivered to partners and clients.
 three new apprentices have settled well into their roles, as has the new Audit Manager.
Two new auditors have also been appointed to assist with delivery; both employees have
been employed on temporary contracts to reflect a level of uncertainty in terms of income
streams.
 training and induction has been a remote process, but one that has been successfully
addressed.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4
 a request for an update on having independent / non-elected representatives for each area
on the Partnership.
It was MOVED by Councillor Gribble, SECONDED by Councillor Parker-Delaz-Ajete and
RESOLVED
that the Committee notes the nine month update report of the County Treasurer.
*

88

Budget Monitoring 2020/21 - Month 9
The Committee received the report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/31) monitoring the Budget
of the Partnership at month 9, indicating a risk of an overspend against the budget for the
year.
The report referred to a level of uncertainty with regards activity due to the ongoing Covid
pandemic, especially so in work with maintained schools, who are charged one third of the
audit charge each year. In 2020/21, delivery will not be at the level expected, and so the
intention will be to recognise that the majority of this income should be “carried forward” into
2021/22. The impact in 2020/21 will be a “loss” to DAP on work for schools resulting in a
projected potential overspend of around £47k in 2020/21.
It was MOVED by Councillor Gribble, SECONDED by Councillor Hackett and
RESOLVED
that the Committee note the projected outturn, variances and reason.

*

89

Devon Audit Partnership Budget 2021/22
The Head of Devon Audit Partnership presented the budget for 2021/22.
Members noted:
 the continuing pandemic inevitably creates uncertainty around the budget.
 the 5% saving Plymouth City Council have asked the Partnership to make in 2021/22 in
relation to its internal audit service.
 the budget for 2021/22 has been increased by 1% to reflect general price increases.
 it is a balanced budget, with a small operating surplus factored into it.
 the Partnership currently employs approximately 40 staff, on a mix of permanent and
temporary contracts.
 possibility of savings from staff continuing to remote work in the future. The Head of the
Partnership advised that there may be a saving over the next year in terms of the £28,000
budgeted travel costs but there would be physical visits moving forward for some auditing
services.
Members expressed their thanks to DAP staff for their work over the last 12 months through
the pandemic.
It was MOVED by Councillor Gribble, SECONDED by Councillor Loxton and
RESOLVED
that the Committee agrees the proposed budget for 2021/22 and the areas of uncertainty
within the budgeted income figure.

Page 2

Agenda Item 4
*

90

CIPFA Guidance on Annual Internal Audit Opinions
The Committee received the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/33) highlighting guidance
from CIPFA, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy, to Heads of Internal
Audit and Audit Committees. In essence, the guidance recognises that internal audit work in
2020/21 is likely to be affected by the Covid pandemic and the risk that internal audit plans
will need to be amended to reflect the changing risks that have emerged during the pandemic.
Members noted that working arrangements have been adjusted to try to ensure the
Partnership will be in a position to issue an annual assurance opinion to each of the partners
by the end of the year. The Committee thanked the Head of the Partnership for his efforts to
manager internal audit coverage in challenging times.
It was MOVED by Councillor Gribble, SECONDED by Councillor Corvid and
RESOLVED
that the Committee notes the recently issued guidance by CIPFA on the impact of Covid on
the Annual Internal Audit Opinion.

*

91

Audit Together Newsletter - January 2021
The Committee received the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/34) relating to the Audit
Together newsletter which aims to bring to the attention of members some of the key
developments in internal audit across the country, and how these may impact on individual
internal audit plans.
It was MOVED by Councillor Gribble, SECONDED by Councillor Hackett and
RESOLVED
that the Committee notes the recently prepared and circulated Audit Together newsletter.

92

Future Meeting
The Committee agreed to meet next at 10.30am on 8 July 2021.

*DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT
The Meeting started at 10.30 am and finished at 11.05 am

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

Page 4

Agenda Item 6
CT/21/61
Devon Audit Partnership Committee
8th July 2021
DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP - 2020/21 – Revenue Outturn Position
Report of the Head of Devon Audit Partnership

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to confirmation by the Committee
before taking effect.
Recommendations: That the committee:-

Note the DAP 2020/21 revenue outturn position.
Note the DAP balance sheet as at 31 March 2021 and the balances contained
Note the Accounting Statement at appendix 1, prepared in accordance with the
(former) small bodies return format
Approve the chair to sign the Annual Governance Statement as shown at appendix 2
Note the Annual Internal Audit Report for 2020/21 shown at appendix 3

1.

Budget Monitoring – Revenue Outturn Position

1.1

In March 2021 the Committee received a report referring to a level of uncertainty with
regards activity, due to the ongoing Covid pandemic, especially so in relation to work with
maintained schools which had been closed for a considerable period during the year. The
potential impact of this was a “loss” to DAP on work for schools, resulting in a projected
potential overspend in 2020/21

1.2

Since preparing the above report DAP have carefully controlled costs and have also
corresponded with Education and Learning colleagues with regards the problem. We have
identified and confirmed that we will carry forward into 2021/22 a significant amount of the
affected schools funding (£36k) and beyond; leaving a ‘zero’ revenue outturn position for
2020/21 for the Partnership overall.

1.3

Although we will be unable to replace all the school audit work lost in 2020/21 we have
proposed to use £12,000 in each of the next 3 years to “uplift” the audit programme for
schools – this may result in, say, an extra half day coverage on each audit, or maybe
some sector wide initiative(s) looking at a common risk area (for example maybe cyber
security or data protection). We will work with colleagues to agree the best approach.

1.4

As refer to above, this has meant that the revenue outturn position of DAP for 2020/21 is
‘zero’ meaning that there will be no surplus to allocate to Partners but also no requirement
to draw from the DAP reserves for any potential “loss”.

1.5

The Revenue Outturn position for 2020/21 is as follows:2020/21
Base
Budget

Employees

Outturn
Position

Over /
Under
spend

1,474,400

1,598,433

124,033

Premises

39,500

40,575

1,075

Transport

27,400

7,132

(20,268)

Supplies & Services

75,000

57,465

(17,535)

Page 5

Agenda Item 6
Support

21,000

21,300

300

Income

(1,637,300)

(1,724,906)

(87,606)

0

0

0

Total (Surplus) / Deficit

1.6

2

Other points of note are:•

Employee costs – increased costs due to Temporary staff recruited to meet additional
requests for services from partners and clients

•

Transport – considerably less than expected due to staff working from home during
the pandemic

•

Supplies and Services – less demand for services such as printing, leaflets for events,
communication costs and some lower than expected costs for ICT maintenance
recharges.

•

Income – additional service requests from partners and customer.

Balance Sheet

2.1
We prepare a revised balance sheet each year, which sets out our reserves. Our reserves
remain unchanged from last year (due to a zero revenue outturn position). Reserves remain at a
healthy £221k; the reserves belong to our partners, both founding and more recent partners (such
as Torridge & Mid Devon). The reserve(s) are allocated as per the partnership agreement, which,
in summary, allocates any surplus (or deficit) in relation to the Partners funding provision. The
reserve and allocations are set out below:-

Page 6

Agenda Item 6
2

Small Bodies Return

2.1

In previous years the committee has received a “small bodies return” which has reported
the financial performance of the partnership, provided an Annual Governance Statement
and incorporated the views of the Internal Auditor.

2.2

The requirement for a small bodies return has been removed, however the return
contained some good elements of governance and enabled effective year on year
comparisons to take place. For this reason we set out below key information that formed
the basis of the return and which, we consider, is "good practice" to continue.

2.4

We also provide three appendices that capture the key elements of the return:o Appendix 1 – Accounting Statements for 2020/21 – which contains the signature of
Mary Davis, the S151 officer of DAP (this should be read in conjunction with the
revenue outturn position at section 1)
o Appendix 2 – Annual Governance Statement – to be approved by the Committee
Chair.
o Appendix 3 – Annual Internal Audit report for 2020/21 as prepared by Chris Gunn
of SWAP

Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership
23rd June 2021

Robert Hutchins
Electoral Divisions: All
Local Government Act 1972
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Hutchins
Tel No: (01392) 382437
Larkbeare House
Background Paper
Date
Nil
There are no equality issues associated with this report

Page 7

File Ref

Agenda Item 6

Appendix 1

Devon Audit Partnership - Accounting Statement for 2020/21
Year ending
31 March 2020
(£)

Balances brought
forward

Notes & guidance

31 March 2021
(£)

212,262

221,044

1,721,206

1,724,906

From partners and clients for all
our services
None for DAP

1,541,710

1,598,433

Salaries, wages, PAYE, NI and
pension costs for all employees
(Internal Audit & Counter Fraud)

- All other payments

170,714

126,472

= Balances carried
forward

221,044

221,044

76,368

-242,176

+ Income
+ other receipts
- staff costs

Total cash

Total fixed assets

We have raised invoices promptly
in 2020/21 to our partners and
clients. However, the internal
recharge from Devon to DAP
(circa £350k), was unfortunately
not actioned until after 31 March
2021. Although this is a “noncash” journal it does affect our
reported “cash” position.
Excluding this Devon internal
recharge, our cash position would
be circa +£100k
We do not hold any land,
buildings, or substantial fixed
assets (out ict is provided by DCC
ICT services and not “owned” by
DAP).

I certify that for the year ended 31 March 2021 the accounting statements in this annual
return present fairly the financial position of the body and its income and expenditure.
Signed by Responsible Financial Officer (Mary Davis)

Date: 24.06.2021

Page 8

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2

Devon Audit Partnership – Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
We acknowledge as the members of Devon Audit Partnership our responsibility for ensuring
that there is a sound system of internal control, including the preparation of the accounting
statements. We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, with respect to the
accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 that:

1. We approved the accounting
statements prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Accounts
and Audit Regulations and proper
practices
2. We maintained an adequate system
of internal control, including measures
designed to prevent and detect fraud
and corruption and reviewed its
effectiveness.
3. We took all reasonable steps to
assure ourselves that there are no
matters of actual or potential noncompliance with laws, regulations and
proper practices that could have a
significant financial effect on the ability
of DAP to conduct its business or on its
finances.
4. We carried out an assessment of the
risks facing DAP and took appropriate
steps to manage those risks.
5. We maintained throughout the year
and adequate and effective system of
internal audit of DAP's accounting
records and control systems.
6. We took appropriate action on all
matters raised in reports from auditors.
7. We considered whether any
litigation, liabilities, commitments,
events or transactions, occurring either
during or after the year-end, have a
financial impact on the body and where
appropriate have included them in the
accounting statements.

Agreed
Yes No
Y

“yes” means that DAP
Prepared its accounting statements in
the way prescribed by law.

Y

Made proper arrangements and
accepted responsibility for
safeguarding the public money and
resources in its charge.

Y

Has only done what it has the legal
power to do and has complied with
proper practices in doing so.

Y

Considered the financial and other
risks it faces and has dealt with the
properly.
Arranged for a competent person,
independent of the financial controls
and procedures, to give and objective
view on whether the internal controls
meet the needs of DAP.
Responded to matters brought to its
attention by auditors.
Disclosed everything it should have
about its business activity during the
year including events taking place
after the year-end if relevant.

Y

Y
Y

Signed by
Chair

Dated

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

Appendix 3

Page 10

Agenda Item 6

Page 11

Agenda Item 7
CT/21/62
Devon Audit Partnership Committee
8 July 2021

DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
Report of the Head of Devon Audit Partnership

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to confirmation by the
Committee before taking effect.
Recommendations:

1.

i.

That members note the progress made by the Devon Audit Partnership during the
period the 2020/21 financial year.

ii.

That members note the continued high level of customer satisfaction achieved by
the Partnership.

SUMMARY
The Update Report, available separately, describes the performance of Devon Audit
Partnership during the period the financial year 2020/21 and some of the key
achievements during this period

2.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS
There are no financial considerations arising from this report.

3.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS
There are no specific legal considerations arising from this report.

4.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT CONSIDERATIONS (INCLUDING CLIMATE
CHANGE)
There are no environment and environmental related issues arising from this report.

5.

EQUALITY CONSIDERATIONS
There are no equality issues identified as arising from this report.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT CONSIDERATIONS
No risks have been identified from this report

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
7.

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPACT
There are no implications on public health, or public health services, arising from this
report.

Mary Davis, County Treasurer

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972:
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Hutchins, Head of Devon Audit Partnership
Tel No: 01392 385483

Room: Dart Suite, Larkbeare House, Topsham Rd, Exeter

Page 14

Risk, Internal Audit, Counter
Fraud & Assurance
Annual Report 2020/21
Page 15

Partnership Management
Committee
June 2021

Report of the Head of Audit Partnership
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to confirmation by the Committee before taking effect.

Contents

Recommendation: that the Committee notes the current status of the Partnership and current issues.
Key initiatives since February 2021

Page 3 – Finance, new
business and new staff

Page 16

Looking back, I am sure that 2020/21 will be a year that none of us will forget. It has been an immense challenge at times, but
Page 4 - Adding Value
also a privilege to work with partners as they have responded to the crisis in our communities - I hope that our team have been
able to support both front-line and back-office services in some small way.
Page 5 – Customer Service
Excellence (CSE)
We are all now recognising that a return to previously (mainly) office-based jobs is not going to happen for some time; remote
and hybrid working is the model that we will be adopting for 2021/22 and beyond. We know that this brings with it advantages
Page 6 - Internal Audit
and also challenges – it is crucial that the DAP management team maximise the benefits that this will bring whilst recognising,
Performance
and then effectively dealing with, the challenges presented.
Appendix 1 - Customer
2020/21 saw a significant turnover of staff. We said good-bye to a number of experienced and skilled individuals, but welcomed Service Excellence Results –
in new staff, with new ideas and a fresh outlook, that will help ensure we continue to develop our services.
2020/21
In July, further staff will retire from DAP, including two of our most experienced senior auditors and my Deputy, David Curnow;
we will miss them all, and wish them all a long and happy retirement. I must give my specific thanks to David for supporting,
challenging, pushing and restraining me at various times over the years; David has part of the reason why DAP has been (and
continues to be) a success and his assistance has been invaluable to me.

Robert Hutchins
Head of Devon Audit Partnership June 2021

Finance, new business and new staff
Budget position
I am pleased to report that the Partnership continues to remain within budget and even with all the
challenges that Covid 19 brought, we were able to “break even” in the 2020/21 financial year. This
means that our cumulative overall surplus remains at a healthy £221k. However, we know that
things can, and do, change quickly and so constantly monitor the financial position to ensure we
stay on track and within budget.

New Business – We are pleased that we have been asked to provide the internal audit service to SWISco, a
new joint enterprise delivering services in the Torbay area.
We continue to win work in respect of our service to Academies and Multi-Academy Trusts (MAT’s). We have
recently entered into new agreements with the following academies:

Page 17

Combe Pafford – Devon; Bradworthy Primary – Devon; Brixham College – Torbay
Huish Episcopi – Somerset; Preston Primary – Somerset

In addition, we have recently submitted tenders for three Academies, one existing client (COAST) and two new large MAT’s and are waiting to hear back. We have also
prepared a tender for WAVE Academy, a MAT for pupils with special needs and medical conditions
As for Interreg work, the UK has now left the EU, and so there are very few opportunities for new First Level Controller (FLC) work. However, we were recently
appointed by Great Yarmouth Borough Council to be their replacement FLC for the next year (up until Apr 22) to cover an extension that their existing project has been
given.

New staff
We recently recruited a new Audit Manager to support our work at one of our major
partners, Devon County Council; Joanne McCormick joined us in April and brings with her a
wealth of experience in not just internal audit but external audit as well. Jo has an approach
that “puts the customer first” and we believe that she will relish the challenge of working with
a large, diverse complex and rewarding organisation such as the County Council.

Adding Value
We are well aware that “doing an audit” is not enough to meet our customers’ expectations; we know that senior management and those charged with
governance very much value our independent assurance & welcome our identification of untreated risk or control weaknesses, but they also want an audit
service that “adds value”.
Added value will mean different things to different people at different times; it is not about a “buy one get one free” approach, but it is about using our
professionalism and ability to apply a unique and independent approach to help organisations and managers provide their services in the best possible
fashion. We employ staff who can make a difference and encourage them to “add value” at every step in the audit process. We set out below some comments
received from customers since February who agreed that we have achieved this aim.

Page 18

. Purchasing Cards, May 2021
The auditors were very professional and
approachable throughout the entire
process. The depth and breadth of the
audit, not just looking at high level data but
delving in to find out underlying reasons
was particularly helpful.

Equality and Diversity.
Yes the audit added value.. A useful
summary and overview of where we
currently are as an organisation with
regards E & D
.

Procurement Governance, May
2021
Good communications between
service and DAP team, meetings
planned, efficient programme
timescales and overall good planning
approach. Good levels of research,
and consultation

Schools, May 2021
The audit added value in that it identified
areas for improvement in processes and
supported us to be able to make these
improvements, particularly valuable as the
entire Administration Team is relatively new
in post and individuals haven’t worked in
school before.

System Administration,
May 2021
Needless to say that the
past twelve months has
proved to be a
challenging period as we
have adapted to new
ways of working. Even
so, this audit was
completed in timely
manner and with
minimum fuss.
.

Customer Service Excellence (CSE)
DAP holds the Customer Service Excellent award.

DAP – Customer Survey Results for 2020/21

After every audit we issue client survey forms. The results of the surveys returned
remain very good and very positive. The overall result is very pleasing, with near
98% being "satisfied” or better across our services, see appendix 1. It is very
pleasing to report that our clients continue to rate the overall usefulness of the audit
and the helpfulness of our auditors highly.
However, the real value in seeking feedback is to identify at an early stage where
we have not met expectations and take action to address this. In this period, we
have had one feedback form where the majority of scores were “poor”. We have
spoken to the auditor involved and provided training, support and guidance and
expect performance to suitably improve.

Page 19

We seek feedback from customers from all sectors. An extract from some of the
feedback received since February is shown below:-



Key Financial Systems, May 2021 - The audit was conducted fairly and in a helpful manner and didn’t involve unnecessary interference
with normal work patterns



Schools, May 2021 - The Auditor was extremely professional as always. It was a very positive and useful process



Payroll April 2021 - Key contacts were a pleasure to work with and it felt very collaborative. I appreciated K's efforts to minimise
disruption to me/the team. All positive - thank you!



Asset Register April 2021 - As mentioned in previous questions the audit was conducted fairly and in a helpful manner and didn't involve
unnecessary interference with normal work patterns

DAP - Internal Audit Performance
Our analysis of internal audit performance for 2020/21 shows that, overall, performance is generally as expected.
Some of the indicators show a slight deteriorating in performance from the previous year, but this must be considered against the backdrop of
responding to the Covid pandemic. The team have adapted well to home working and remote auditing, but there was always going to be some
development and teething issues related to how we obtained audit evidence and how we tested for compliance.
In addition, we were most mindful of the need for front line service areas to concentrate upon the Covid response, and so, wherever possible, we tried
to undertake our work in non-intrusive way that enabled the front line response to continue in the best way.
The performance figures for 2020/21 exclude our work in schools – due to the pandemic schools were either shut or operating in a restricted manner
for a large percentage of the year; as a consequence the work on schools has been excluded from these performance figures.

Page 20

The “percentage of plan started”
reflects the fact that the plans for most of
our partners were changed during the
year. The team have responded
positively and flexibly to these changes,
with the aim of providing assurance and
assistance where it has been most
needed. The 97.7%% started figure is
considered most positive in this year of
Covid and resulting change.

Staff Turnover.
We have approx. 40 staff working across
DAP. During 2020/21 we have 4 staff
leave (1 x Audit, 1 x Auditor 2 and 2 x
Senior Auditor) and 4 staff commence (3
x apprentice and 1 x manager).
Although this is higher than in previous
years, a turnover of staff does allow for a
re-fresh in ideas and approaches, and
allows for progression of staff within the
team.

Appendix 1 - Customer Service Excellence Results – 2020/21
Customer Survey Results April 2020 to March 2021
Summary of 36 responses

Page 21

Agenda Item 8
CT/21/63
Devon Audit Partnership Committee
8 July 2021

DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP FURTHER UPDATE JUNE 2021
Report of the Head of Devon Audit Partnership

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to confirmation by the
Committee before taking effect.
Recommendations:
i.

That members note the role of the Chair of the Management Board of Devon Audit
Partnership (DAP).

ii.

That members note the current process with regards recruitment of a replacement
Deputy Head of Partnership

iii.

That members note the update provided with regards action from the Redmond
Review

1.

ROLE OF THE CHAIR OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

1.1

When considering the DAP Governance Arrangements it is important to note that the
DAP agreement states:The Management Board shall be comprised of the Chief Finance Officer of
each of the Councils ………the Chair of the Management Board shall be on a
rotational basis with each Council having a member serve as Chair for one
year ……....

1.2

The Chair of the Management Board takes an active lead on steering the agenda for
DAP Board and Partnership Committee meetings. The role of Chair is rotated on an
annual basis (to share out the work-load). There is good merit in the Chair of the
Board being from the same council as the Chair of the committee; the table below
sets out the current (and future) Committee Chair expectations, with Torbay
expected to be Chair in the 2021/22 year.
Financial year
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24

1.3

Vice Chair
Torridge
Mid Devon
Devon
Torbay
North
Plymouth
Torridge

Chair
Plymouth
Torridge
Mid Devon
Devon
Torbay
North
Plymouth

The role of the Chair is to support the Head of Partnership on :•
Setting some key themes or challenges for the coming 12 months – often
based on previous experience of receiving DAP services

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
•
•
•
•
•

Receives from the Head of Partnership a more detailed financial insight to the
Partnership and the budget
Discusses permanent changes to staffing, in particular at a senior level
(manager and above)
Receives and approves performance reports from the Head of Internal Audit
Partnership prior to the Board
Receives and helps resolve disputes with Partners / customers should they
arise
Acts as a mentor to the Head of Partnership on wider issues affecting the
Partnership (which could be wide ranging and may include accommodation,
IT, professional standards etc).

2

REPLACEMENT FOR DEPUTY HEAD OF DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP

2.1

As set out in the Devon Audit Partnership Annual Update Report, the Deputy Head
of DAP (David Curnow) will retire on the 31 July 2021.

2.2

In terms of progress with regards a replacement the following should be noted:•
Martin Phillips (s151 Torbay) as Chair of the Management board will support
the Head of Partnership in the recruitment process
•
The Job Description for the post was out of date; this has been updated and
refreshed. It will now need to be re-evaluated (submitted for re-evaluation 11
June 2021)
•
Once the re-evaluation has been completed, we will advertise – projected
timescale: o
Result of Job evaluation – by early July
o
Advertise - early / mid July
o
Closing date end August
o
Shortlisting early September
o
Interviews (supported by a “role-play” assessment process) early /
mid September

3

REDMOND REVIEW – AN UPDATE

3.1

In September 2020 Sir Tony Redmond presented his report on the Oversight of
Local Audit and the Transparency of Local Authority Financial Reporting.

3.2

DAP prepared an “Action Plan” for each Partner to assist them in monitoring the
completion of actions against the Redmond recommendations, although it is
appreciated that a number of actions are dependent upon Ministry of Housing,
Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) actions. Internal Audit received a minor
mention in the Redmond report in that External Audit colleagues should look to work
more closely with Internal Audit. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) officers are giving consideration to preparing an explanatory
note on Internal Audit / External Audit relationship and may seek steer from IASAB
on this.

3.3

As part of his report Sir Tony recommended that Independent Members should be
recruited to Audit Committees, with the aim of bringing in specialist, technical
knowledge to support the other elected committee members. In their response to
the report (17 Dec 2020) MHCLG said “we will work with key stakeholders such as
CIPFA, the National Audit Office (NAO) and the Local Government Association
(LGA) to ensure that, where appropriate, new guidance is issued which addresses
…… the appointment of an independent member(s) to audit committees”. We are
still awaiting this guidance.

Page 24

Agenda Item 8
3.4

DAP previously floated the idea of a “pool” of independent members being operated
by DAP to serve more than one partner / audit committee; we have been trying to
progress this but have found that DAP partners are in “different places” with regards
permitting independent membership on committees, and if such attendance should
be financial recompensed or not. It appears that we will have to wait until CIPFA /
NAO issues specific instruction before we will be able to pursue this idea.

3.5

MHCLG published an update to their December response in April 2021, which
confirms financial support for the implementation of the recommendations of £15m in
2021/22 to meet an anticipated rise in audit fees, driven by new requirement on
auditors and to enable Councils to develop standardised statements of service
information and costs. A consultation exercise is being conducted on how this £15m
should be allocated; closing date for views was the 17th May.

3.6

Of further note is the continued extension of the deadline for publishing audited
accounts from 31st July to 30th September for a period of 2 years with a
commitment to review again to see whether there is a continued need to have this
extended deadline.

3.7

Finally, MHCLG have confirmed that a new independent body, the Office of Local
Audit and Regulation (OLAR), will be created and be responsible for procurement,
contract management, regulation and oversight of external audit. A White Paper has
also been published setting out details of how the Government proposes to establish
a new regulator, the Audit, Reporting & Governance Authority (ARGA) to replace the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC), with strengthened with new powers to oversee
the local government audit system.

3.8

The Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) will continue as the appointing body
for local audit, and work alongside the ARGA.

4.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

4.1

There are no financial considerations arising from this report. The cost of the
replacement Deputy Head of Partnership is already accounted for within the
approved DAP budget.

5.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

5.1

There are no specific legal considerations arising from this report.

6.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT CONSIDERATIONS (INCLUDING CLIMATE
CHANGE)

6.1

There are no environment and environmental related issues arising from this report.

7.

EQUALITY CONSIDERATIONS

7.1

There are no equality issues identified as arising from this report.

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT CONSIDERATIONS

8.1

No risks have been identified from this report

Page 25

Agenda Item 8
9.

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPACT

9.1

There are no implications on public health, or public health services, arising from this
report.

Mary Davis, County Treasurer

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972:
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Hutchins, Head of Devon Audit Partnership
Tel No: 01392 385483

Room: Dart Suite, Larkbeare House, Topsham Rd, Exeter

Page 26

